# Registration of a Charge

Company name: PARTSPANEL LIMITED

Company number: 03241006

Received for Electronic Filing: 19/06/2020



# **Details of Charge**

Date of creation: 18/06/2020

Charge code: 0324 1006 0008

Persons entitled: INVESTEC CAPITAL SOLUTIONS NO.1 LIMITED

Brief description: UNIT 4, 29-35 NORTH ACTON ROAD, LONDON

Contains negative pledge.

# Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

# Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT

DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION

IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: GARETH COLLINS



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 3241006

Charge code: 0324 1006 0008

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 18th June 2020 and created by PARTSPANEL LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 19th June 2020.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 22nd June 2020

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





#### **INVESTEC CAPITAL SOLUTIONS NO. 1 LIMITED**

and

## **PARTSPANEL LIMITED**

#### LEGAL MORTGAGE

of

Unit 4, 29-35 North Acton Road, London, NW10 6PE



Premier House, 36-48 Queen Street Horsham, West Sussex RH13 5AD t: 01403 262333 f: 01403 262444 e: gcollins@pdt.co.uk Ref: GC.AMI4/14

Dated: 14 February 2020

## **CONTENTS**

1.	COVENANT TO PAY
2.	PROPERTY CHARGED
3.	MORTGAGOR'S CHATTELS
4.	OBLIGATIONS TO REPAIR AND INSURE ETC
5.	MORTGAGEE'S RIGHTS
6.	THE LAND REGISTRY
7,	REDEMPTION OF PRIOR CHARGES ETC
8.	APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF A RECEIVER
9.	POWERS AND CAPACITY OF A RECEIVER
10.	JURISDICTION
11.	JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY
12.	INSOLVENCY ACT 1986 ETC
13.	PURCHASER NOT BOUND TO ENQUIRE
14.	INTERPRETATION
15.	NOTICES
16.	DELIVERY
17.	DEFINITIONS
18.	CONSUMER CREDIT ACT
19.	SEVERANCE
THE	SCHEDULE
(Details of the Property legally mortgaged)	

# THIS LEGAL MORTGAGE is made on 18 ろいべぞ 2020

#### BETWEEN:

- (1) PARTSPANEL LIMITED (Company Registration No. 03241006) whose registered office is at Unit 3 Lower Park Industrial Estate, Park Royal Road, London, W3 6XA ("the Mortgagor"); and
- (2) **INVESTEC CAPITAL SOLUTIONS NO. 1 LIMITED** (Company Registration No. 09401092) whose registered office is at 30 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7QP) ("the Mortgagee")

#### **WHEREAS**

- 1. The Mortgagor and Mortgagee entered into a sales finance agreement on 19 May 2017.
- 2. The Mortgagor and Mortgagee entered into a term loan facility on 29 JANUARY 2020.
- 3. The two documents referred to at recitals (1) and (2) shall hereafter be referred to as "the Agreements".
- 4. By entering into the Agreements, the Mortgagor entered into various obligations to the Mortgagee as described in the Agreements. The Mortgagor has agreed to be bound by the terms therein, including but not limited to charging the Property to the Mortgagee.
- In respect of the obligations in the Agreements the Mortgagor agrees to enter into this Legal Mortgage in support of the Mortgagor's obligations and liabilities under the Agreements.
- The Mortgagor confirms that it is aware of the contents of this Legal Mortgage and of the Agreements and has received independent legal advice on this Legal Mortgage.

#### WITNESSETH:

#### 1. COVENANT TO PAY

The Mortgagor covenants with the Mortgagee to pay to the Mortgagee as continuing security for performance by the Mortgagor of its obligations to the Mortgagee under the Agreements and thereby on demand of;

- 1.1 all money now or at any time due and owing by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee under the terms of the Agreements or otherwise;
- 1.2 all costs charges and expenses (on a full indemnity basis) howsoever incurred by the Mortgagee in obtaining the said monies and enforcing the security hereby granted;
- 1.3 interest as calculated in accordance with the terms of the Agreements;
- 1.4 all costs and expenses legal or otherwise incurred by the Mortgagee in the preparation execution perfection and registration of this Legal Mortgage.

#### 2. **PROPERTY CHARGED**

The Mortgagor with full title guarantee hereby:

- 2.1 charges by way of legal mortgage the Property (being the property described in the Schedule hereto) and the proceeds of sale thereof and all compensation or grants payable or paid to or recoverable by the Mortgagor in respect of the Property and all other estates and interests which the Mortgagor may have in the Property (including but not limited to estates or interests under any lease or tenancy of the Property or period of holding over after or statutory or other continuation of such lease or tenancy and any right to renew the same) and to the extent that any such interests are not capable of being legally charged the Mortgagor with full title guarantee hereby assign the same (subject to reassignment on redemption)
- 2.2 charges by way of specific equitable charge any shares or membership rights or other rights ("the Shares") which the Mortgagor owns in any

estates or interests in the Property including any shares in any management company or tenants<sup>a</sup> association

- 2.3 assigns by way of security (but subject to reassignment on redemption) all the benefit of every insurance policy (whether or not pursuant to an obligation in this Legal Mortgage) in respect of the Property (other than the third party and public liability policies) and all moneys or proceeds paid or payable thereunder but subject to all rights powers and other matters having actual priority in law to the rights conferred and the obligations imposed by this Legal Mortgage (whether by virtue of the terms of such policies the Fire Prevention (Metropolis) Act 1774 any prior mortgage or charge or any subsisting lease or otherwise howsoever)
- 2.4 assigns the benefit of all guarantees warranties and representations given or made by and any rights or remedies against all or any of the architects quantity surveyors and consulting engineers now or at any time engaged by the Mortgagor in relation to the Property and the manufacturers suppliers or installers of all plant and machinery fixtures fittings and other items now or from time to time in the buildings erected or to be erected on the Property and any other persons firm or company now or from time to time under contract with or under a duty to the Mortgagor including (without limitation) the right to prosecute in the name of the Mortgagor any proceedings against any such person in respect of any act omission neglect default breach of contract or breach of duty whether relating to the design construction inspection or supervision of the construction of any said buildings or to the quality or fitness for use of such plant machinery fixtures fittings and other items or otherwise howsoever and the benefit of all sums recovered in any proceedings against all or any such persons (subject to reassignment on redemption)

to the Mortgagee as a continuing security for the payment or discharge on demand of all moneys obligations and liabilities covenanted to be paid or discharged by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee under Clause 1 above.

#### 3. MORTGAGOR'S CHATTELS

If the Mortgagee takes possession of the Property the Mortgagee is hereby authorised as agent for the Mortgagor to remove store sell or otherwise deal with any furniture plant machinery equipment goods and effects which do not in law form part of the Property which the Mortgagor shall fail or refuse to remove from the Property within seven days of being requested so to do by written notice from the Mortgagee and the Mortgagee shall not be liable for any loss or damage occasioned to the Mortgagor or the Property. The Mortgagor shall indemnify the Mortgagee against all expenses incurred by the Mortgagee in relation to such furniture plant machinery equipment-goods and effects and the Mortgagee shall account to the Mortgagor for the proceeds of any such sale after deducting any such expenses. Nothing herein contained shall give to or confer on the Mortgagee any charge or right in respect of such furniture plant machinery equipment goods and effects or the proceeds of sale thereof which would constitute this Legal Mortgage as a bill of sale.

#### 4. OBLIGATIONS TO REPAIR AND INSURE ETC.

The Mortgagor hereby covenants in respect of the Property:

4.1 that the Mortgagor will keep the Property in a good and substantial state of repair and in good working order and condition and will not pull down or remove either any building or erection for the time being forming part of the Property or any fixtures annexed to the same or any of them without the previous consent in writing of the Mortgagee except in the ordinary course of repair or maintenance of the Property Provided that for the purposes of ascertaining whether the Property has been kept in compliance with this covenant the Mortgagee may from time to time cause it to be surveyed by a surveyor appointed by the Mortgagee and may pay reasonable and proper remuneration to such surveyor who may without rendering the Mortgagee liable as mortgagee in possession enter upon the Property for the purpose of making his survey and whose certificate shall be conclusive as to compliance with this covenant and such remuneration and the VAT payable thereon if unpaid by the Mortgagor on demand will be debited to the Mortgagor's account with the Mortgagee and deemed to be an expense properly incurred in relation

- to this security and shall carry interest accordingly and be secured hereby;
- 4.2 that the Mortgagor will insure and keep the Property insured with an insurance company approved by the Mortgagee against loss or damage by fire explosion earthquake riot and civil commotion malicious damage heave subsidence fire storm and tempest including lightning impact by aircraft and articles dropped therefrom bursting and overflowing of water tanks apparatus and pipes and plate glass and impact by motor vehicles and such other risks as shall be required by the Mortgagee to the full amount of their insurable value and in addition architects' and surveyors' fees at the scales current from time to time and any consequential loss directly or indirectly resulting or arising from such loss or damage including loss of profits and where any lease of the Property in respect of which the Mortgagor is landlord contains a provision for suspension of rent in the event of damage by fire or other causes the full value of at least three years' rent (including reviewed rent) in all cases either in the joint names of the Mortgagor and the Mortgagee the interest of endorsed on every such policy as the Mortgagee may require and will duly pay or cause to be paid on the due date the premiums and other sums of money payable in respect of any policy or policies effected under this clause and immediately after such payment will produce to the Mortgagee the receipt for the same and will apply all monies which may be received by virtue of such policy or policies (and will stand possessed of all monies which may be received by the Mortgagor by virtue of any policy of insurance upon the Property upon trust to apply the same) either in making good the loss or damage in respect of which the same may have been received or (at the option of the Mortgagee but not so as to prejudice any obligations in the policy of insurance or any obligations having priority to the obligations imposed by this Legal Mortgage) in or towards the discharge or reduction of the monies which shall for the time being be secured hereby;
- 4.3 that no development within the meaning of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or any Act or Acts amending or replacing the same ("the Planning Acts") will be undertaken or carried out on the Property

without the relevant or necessary planning permission prescribed in the Planning Acts having first been obtained and that no application for planning permission under the Planning Acts in respect of the Property will be applied for without the written consent of the Mortgagee and that if such planning permission is obtained all conditions (if any) subject to which such permission is granted will on the carrying out of such development be strictly observed and performed and that within fourteen days of the receipt of any requirement order notice or direction of any competent authority pursuant to the Planning Acts full particulars thereof will be supplied to the Mortgagee who will be entitled to decide whether such requirement notice order or direction shall be complied with or resisted and in the latter case the Mortgagor will at the direction of the Mortgagee take such steps (including by way of contestation or appeal if required) as the Mortgagee may direct in order to obtain the variation or rescission of such requirement notice order or direction and that any costs properly and reasonably incurred or moneys properly and reasonably expended by the Mortgagee (including surveyor's fees and VAT) in connection with the matters referred to in this clause may if unpaid by the Mortgagor on demand be debited to the Mortgagor's account with the Mortgagee and shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred in relation to this security and carry interest accordingly and be secured hereby:

- 4.4 that the Mortgagor will not without the previous written consent of the Mortgagee exercise any of the powers of leasing or of agreeing to lease or of accepting surrenders conferred on mortgagors by the LPA nor grant any licence to allow or permit any one to use or occupy or share occupation or use of the Property nor vary the provisions of any existing lease licence or tenancy agreement or release any tenant or guarantor of any lease from its obligations hereunder;
- 4.5 where any lease relating to the Property contains a provision for the amount of any rent payable to be dependent upon agreement between the Mortgagor and anyone else the Mortgagor will not agree or allow to be agreed any such rent without the written consent of the Mortgagee or if such lease contains a provision for any rent payable by or to the

Mortgagor to be dependent upon arbitration or the determination of an expert (whether in default of an agreement or not) the Mortgagor will not appoint or agree to the appointment of any expert or arbitrator without having first obtained the Mortgagee's consent in writing (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld) and will not either as superior landlord or otherwise give its consent or licence to or suffer any person to grant any lease or underlease affecting the Property without the prior written consent of the Mortgagee first being obtained either where the tenant under any such lease or underlease would enjoy any protection of tenure after the expiration of the term granted by such lease or underlease or where the grant of such lease or underlease would in any way prejudice the marketability of the Property or its value to the Mortgagee as security. Provided that nothing herein contained shall entitle the Mortgagee to refuse its consent in the above circumstances where such refusal would result in the Mortgagor being compelled unlawfully to refuse consent to the grant out of any lease or underlease subsisting at the date hereof of any new lease or underlease:

- 4.6 that the Mortgagor will pay all rent sums and other payments payable out of or in respect of the Property and will duly and effectually perform and observe any covenants obligations stipulations and conditions expressly or impliedly imposed on the Mortgagor by all conveyances transfers and leases now or in the future affecting the Property and (subject to the provisions of Clause 4.7 below) will also perform and observe all obligations under any statute and any regulation order or notice made or given by a competent authority and will on demand produce to the Mortgagee satisfactory evidence of such payment and of the performance and observance of any such covenants obligations stipulations and conditions and will indemnify the Mortgagee in respect thereof;
- 4.7 to give full particulars of any notice direction order or proposal in respect of the Property made given or issued by any local public or other competent authority which is served on or given to the Mortgagor or of which the Mortgagor become otherwise aware forthwith on receipt or on so becoming aware and if so required by the Mortgagee to produce it to the Mortgagee and without delay to take all necessary steps either to

comply with such notice direction order or proposal or to make such objections or representations in respect thereof as the Mortgagee reasonably requires or if the Mortgagee reasonably so requires to contest or appeal the same

- 4.8 that the Mortgagor will not without the prior written consent of the Mortgagee dispose of create or permit to subsist any mortgage charge floating security or other encumbrance in favour of any third party over all or any of the assets charged in any way or assigned by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee by clauses 2.3 and 2.4 hereof (whether in priority to or pari passu with or ranking in priority after this Legal Mortgage) and the Mortgagor will not without the prior written consent of the Mortgagee create any mortgage or charge ranking in priority to or pari passu with the floating security hereinbefore created (if any);
- 4.9 that the Mortgagor will notify the Mortgagee forthwith upon the service of any notice in respect of the Property under the Leasehold Reform Act 1967 or the Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 and send the Mortgagee a copy of such notice forthwith and to furnish the Mortgagee with such information as it may reasonably require in connection with the acquisition by the Mortgagor of any freehold or extended or further term of years in the Property and to notify the Mortgagee as soon as the Mortgagor become entitled to such freehold or extended or further term of years in the Property and at the Mortgagor's expense effectively to charge any such freehold or extended or further term of years in the Property acquired by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee by way of legal mortgage.

#### 5. MORTGAGEE'S RIGHTS

It is hereby agreed and declared as follows:

5.1 that if default shall be made by the Mortgagor in complying with clauses 4.1 and 4.2 hereof it shall be lawful for but not obligatory upon the Mortgagee to repair or insure and keep repaired or insured all or any part of the same in accordance with the said clauses and for such purposes to enter upon the Property without thereby becoming liable as mortgagee in possession and any monies expended for that purposes (including VAT) may (if unpaid on demand) be debited to the Mortgagor's account with the Mortgagee and shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred in relation to this security and shall carry interest and be secured hereby accordingly;

- 5.2 during the continuance of this security no person other than the Mortgagor shall be registered under the Land Registration Act 1925 or any Act amending or re-enacting the same as the proprietor of the Property without the consent in writing of the Mortgagee and the costs incurred by the Mortgagee in lodging from time to time a caution or notice of the charge may (if unpaid on demand) be debited to the Mortgagor's account with the Mortgagee and shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred in relation to this security and shall carry interest accordingly and be secured hereby;
- if the Mortgagee receives notice of any mortgage charge or other encumbrance affecting the Property (including but not limited to any overriding interest) or is deemed to receive notice (whether constructive or otherwise) of the same then without prejudice to any other right or remedy to which the Mortgagee may be or become entitled the Mortgagee shall be entitled to close any account or accounts with the Mortgagor in the books of the Mortgagee and to open a new account or accounts in place thereof. If the Mortgagee does not do so it shall nevertheless be treated as if it had done so at the time when it received notice or is deemed to have done so as aforesaid and as from that time all payments made by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee shall be credited or treated as credited to the new account and shall not operate to reduce the amount due from the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee at the time when it received or was deemed to receive the notice;
- 5.4 the Mortgagee shall be entitled (as well before demand as after) without notice to set off any credit balances standing to any account of the Mortgagor against the liabilities of the Mortgagor hereunder. Further until the obligations of the Mortgagor hereunder are discharged in full the Mortgagee shall be entitled to a lien upon any documents or assets of

whatever nature which the Mortgagor keep with the Mortgagee at any time whether for safe custody or otherwise;

- 5.5 this security is in addition to and not in substitution for or to merge with any other security or lien to which the Mortgagee may now or at any time hold for all or any of the monies liabilities or obligations hereby secured;
- 5.6 sections 93 and 103 of the LPA shall not apply to this Legal Mortgage.

#### 6. THE LAND REGISTRY

The Mortgagor hereby consents to the registration of a restriction against the title to the Property at the Land Registry in the following form:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated 18 June 2020

in favour of Investec Capital Solutions No. 1 Limited (co regn no. 09401092) referred to in the Charges Register"

#### 7. REDEMPTION OF PRIOR CHARGES ETC

If any proceedings or steps are taken to exercise any powers or remedies conferred by any mortgage or charge over the Property which secures indebtedness which has priority to or over any indebtedness secured by this Legal Mortgage then the Mortgagee may redeem all or any part of such mortgage or charge or procure the transfer of such mortgage or charge to the Mortgagee and all of the principal money interest cost charges and expenses (including VAT) of and incidental to such transfer may if not repaid by the Mortgagor on demand be debited to the Mortgagor's account with the Mortgagee and shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred in relation to this security carry interest accordingly and be secured hereby.

## 8. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF A RECEIVER

8.1 At any time after the security constituted by this Legal Mortgage has become enforceable or at the request of the Mortgagor, the Mortgagee may, without further notice:

- 8.1.1 appoint under seal or in writing, by a duly authorised officer of the Mortgagee, any one or more person or persons to be a receiver or a receiver and manager, of all or any part of the Property; and
- 8.1.2 (subject to section 45 of the Insolvency Act 1986) from time to time, under seal or in writing, by a duly authorised officer of the Mortgagee, remove any person appointed to be Receiver and may, in a similar manner, appoint another in his place

Where more than one person is appointed Receiver, they shall have power to act separately (unless the appointment by the Mortgagee specifies to the contrary)

- 8.2 The power to appoint a Receiver conferred by this Legal Mortgage shall be in addition to all statutory and other powers of the Mortgagee under the Insolvency Act 1986, the LPA or otherwise, and shall be exercisable without the restrictions contained in sections 103 and 109 of the LPA
- 8.3 The power to appoint a Receiver (whether conferred by this legal mortgage or by statute) shall be, and remain, exercisable by the Mortgagee despite any prior appointment in respect of all or any part of the Property
- 8.4 The Mortgagee may fix the remuneration of any Receiver appointed by it without the restrictions contained in section 109 of the LPA and the remuneration of the Receiver shall be a debt secured by this Legal Mortgage which shall be due and payable immediately upon its being paid by the Mortgagee

## 9. POWERS AND CAPACITY OF A RECEIVER

9.1 Any Receiver appointed by the Mortgagee under this Legal Mortgage shall, in addition to the powers conferred on him by the LPA and the Insolvency Act 1986, have the following powers set out in this clause 9.1:

- 9.1.1 A Receiver may undertake or complete any works of repair, alteration, building or development on the Property and may apply for and maintain any planning permission, building regulation approval or any other permission, consent or licence to carry out any of the same
- 9.1.2 A Receiver may grant, or accept surrenders of, any leases or tenancies affecting the Property and may grant any other interest or right over the Property on such terms and subject to such conditions as he thinks fit
- 9.1.3 A Receiver may provide services and employ, or engage, such managers, officers, servants, contractors, workmen, agents, other personnel and professional advisers on such salaries, for such periods and on such other terms as he thinks fit. A Receiver may discharge any such person or any such person appointed by the Mortgagor
- 9.1.4 A Receiver may exercise or revoke any VAT option to tax as he thinks fit
- 9.1.5 A Receiver may charge and receive such sum by way of remuneration (in addition to all costs, charges and expenses incurred by him) as the Mortgagee may prescribe or agree with him
- 9.1.6 A Receiver may collect and get in the Property or any part of it in respect of which he is appointed and make such demands and take such proceedings as may seem expedient for that purpose, and take possession of the Property with like rights
- 9.1.7 A Receiver may carry on, manage, develop, reconstruct, amalgamate or diversify or concur in carrying on, managing, developing, reconstructing, amalgamating or diversifying the business of the Mortgagor carried out at the Property
- 9.1.8 A Receiver may grant options and licences over all or any part of the Property, sell or concur in selling, assign or concur in

assigning, lease or concur in leasing and accept or concur in accepting surrenders of leases of, all or any of the Property in respect of which he is appointed for such consideration and in such manner (including, without limitation, by public auction or private sale) and generally on such terms and conditions as he thinks fit. A Receiver may promote, or concur in promoting, a company to purchase the Property to be disposed of by him

- 9.1.9 A Receiver may sever and sell separately any fixtures or fittings from the Property without the consent of the Mortgagor
- 9.1.10 A Receiver may give valid receipts for all monies and execute all assurances and things which may be proper or desirable for realising any of the Property
- 9.1.11 A Receiver may make any arrangement, settlement or compromise between the Mortgagor and any other person as he thinks fit
- 9.1.12 A Receiver may bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon all actions, suits and proceedings in relation to any of the Property as he thinks fit
- 9.1.13 A Receiver may, if he thinks fit, effect with any insurer any policy of insurance either in lieu or satisfaction of, or in addition to, the insurance required to be maintained by the Mortgagor under this Legal Mortgage
- 9.1.14 A Receiver may exercise all powers provided for in the LPA in the same way as if he had been duly appointed under that act and exercise all powers provided for an administrative receiver in Schedule 1 of the Insolvency Act 1986
- 9.1.15 A Receiver may, for any of the purposes authorised by this clause 9, raise money by borrowing from the Mortgagee (or from any other person) on the security of all or any of the Property in respect of which he is appointed on such terms as he thinks fit

(including, if the Mortgagee consents) terms under which such security ranks in priority to this Legal Mortgage

- 9.1.16 A Receiver may redeem any prior Encumbrance and settle and pass the accounts to which the Encumbrance relates. Any accounts so settled and passed shall be conclusive and binding on the Mortgagor, and the monies so paid shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred by the Receiver
- 9.1.17 A Receiver may do all such acts and things as an absolute owner could do in the ownership and management of the Property or any part of it
- 9.1.18 A Receiver may do all such other acts and things as he may consider incidental or conducive to any of the matters or powers in this clause 9, or which he lawfully may or can do as agent for the Mortgagor
- 9.2 Any exercise of any of the powers of a Receiver by the Receiver may be on behalf of the Mortgagor, the directors of the Mortgagor, if applicable, or himself
- 9.3 Any Receiver appointed by the Mortgagee under this Legal Mortgage shall be the agent of the Mortgagor and the Mortgagor shall be solely responsible for his acts and remuneration, as well as for any defaults committed by him. The agency of each Receiver shall continue until the Mortgagor goes into liquidation or insolvency and after that the Receiver shall act as principal and shall not become the agent of the Mortgagee

#### 10. **JURISDICTION**

This Legal Mortgage shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law and it is irrevocably agreed for the exclusive benefit of the Mortgagee that the Courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in connection with this Legal Mortgage and that accordingly any suit action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with this Legal Mortgage (in this clause referred to as "Proceedings") may be brought in such courts. Nothing in this clause shall limit the right of the Mortgagee to take

Proceedings against the Mortgagor in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the taking of Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction whether concurrently or not.

## 11. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

All covenants agreements and obligations herein on the part of the Mortgagor (whether express or implied) shall be construed and operate both jointly and severally.

# 12. INSOLVENCY ACT 1986 ETC

The Mortgagor hereby covenants with the Mortgagee to notify the Mortgagee by the most expeditious means reasonably and practicably available to the Mortgagor including but not limited to telephone telex and/or facsimile letter as soon as the Mortgagor becomes aware of the fact that anyone (including the Mortgagor) intends or proposes or is considering taking and/or does in fact take any one or more of the following courses of action:

- making a proposal for a voluntary arrangement of the Mortgagor's affairs under either Part I or Part VIII of the Insolvency Act 1986 (in this Clause 12 called "the Act"); or
- 12.2 petitioning or applying to the Court in respect of the Mortgagor for a bankruptcy order under Part IX of the Act; or
- 12.3 appointing a receiver or manager of any of the Mortgagor's property or any part thereof (including the Property); or
- 12.4 making an application to the Court for the appointment of a manager under Part II of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1987 of any of the Mortgagor's property or any part thereof (including the Property).

## 13. PURCHASER NOT BOUND TO ENQUIRE

No purchaser (as defined in Section 205 of the LPA) of the Property or other person or company shall be bound or concerned to see or enquire whether the right of the Mortgagee or any receiver appointed hereunder to exercise any of its or his powers has arisen or become exercisable.

#### 14. INTERPRETATION

- 14.1 Any references in this Legal Mortgage to statutes or Acts of Parliament (whether specifically or generally) include any statutory extension modification amendment or re-enactment of such statutes or Acts and any regulations or orders made thereunder. Words used in this Legal Mortgage importing one gender include any other gender and words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa. Clause headings are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this Legal Mortgage. Where the expression Mortgagor includes more than one person or body the expression shall include each and all such persons or bodies as the context may permit.
- 14.2 In this Legal Mortgage "the Mortgagor" includes the Mortgagor and his/her/its successors in title those deriving title under them and their personal representatives

#### 15. NOTICES

Any notice or demand by the Mortgagee hereunder shall without prejudice to any other effective mode of making the same be deemed to have been sufficiently made hereunder if served on the Mortgagor personally or left or sent by post to the Mortgagor at either the Property or the last address known to the Mortgagee or any notice or demand sent by post will be assumed to have reached its addressee in the course of posting and in proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove that the notice or demand was properly addressed and posted. Any such demand or any certificate as to the amount at any time secured hereby shall be conclusive and binding on the Mortgagor if signed by an officer of the Mortgagee save in the case of manifest error.

#### 16. **DELIVERY**

The parties hereto have executed this deed on the condition this deed shall not be delivered for the purposes of Section 44 of the Companies Act 2006 until the deed has been formally dated by or on behalf of the parties hereto.

## 17. **DEFINITIONS**

- 17.1 "Encumbrance" means any mortgage charge (whether fixed or floating legal or equitable) pledge lien assignment by way of security or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect
- 17.2 "LPA" means the Law of Property Act 1925
- 17.3 "Receiver" means a receiver appointed by the Mortgagee under clause 8
- 17.4 "VAT" means value added tax chargeable under the Value Added Tax Act
  1994 and any similar replacement tax and any similar additional tax

#### 18. CONSUMER CREDIT ACT

This security shall not extend or apply to any obligations under a regulated agreement under the Consumer Credit Act 1974 (the "Consumer Act") except a regulated agreement to which the provisions of Part V of the Consumer Act do not apply at the date hereof including (but not by way of limitation) an agreement to overdraw on a current account within the meaning of the Consumer Act.

#### 19. **SEVERANCE**

If any provision (or part of a provision) of this Legal Mortgage is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not possible, the relevant provision (or part of a provision) shall be deemed deleted. Any modification to or deletion of a provision (or part of a provision) under this clause shall not affect the legality, validity and enforceability of the rest of this Legal Mortgage.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** this Legal Mortgage has been duly executed by the Mortgagor as a Deed and delivered on the date above

#### THE SCHEDULE

## (Details of the Property legally mortgaged)

Registered Land:

County and District: Ealing (or London Borough) Property: Unit 4, 29-35 North Acton Road, London, NW10 6PE Title Numbers: AGL209377 Executed as a deed by ) **PARTSPANEL LIMITED** ) acting by a director in the presence of Signature of Director Witness Signature: Name: TUFAYEL AHMED KING STREET Address: 36-37 LONDON

I certify that I attended Haresh Chaturbhai Patel (as sole director of Partspanel Limited) named above and fully explained to him the terms and effects of this Deed and that I witnessed his signature. My advice complied with the guidelines set out in the Royal Bank of Scotland Plc v Etridge.

Haresh Chaturbhai Patel is personally known to me or produced satisfactory identifying evidence.

Signed:

Name: TUFAYEL AHMED

Address: 36-37 KING STREET

ECJN &RB

LONDON ECZY SEB

Occupation: Solicitor